

CONSTITUTION



**WESTERN PROVINCE
BADMINTON
ASSOCIATION**

CONTENTS:

1. Names and Colours pg 3

2. Affiliation and Membership pg 3

3. Officers pg 4

4. Sub-Committees pg 7

5. Annual General Meeting pg 8

6. Special General Meetings pg 9

7. Amendment of Constitution or Rules Governing Competitions pg 9

8. Interpretation pg 9

9. Finance pg 10

10. Dissolution pg 11

11. Life Membership pg 11

12. Representative Western Province Teams pg 11

13. Headquarters pg 13

14. General pg 13

15. Arbitration Clause pg 13

1. NAMES AND COLOURS

The name of the Association shall be the Western Province Badminton Association or Westilike Provinsie Pluimbal Vereeniging.

The official colours shall be ROYAL BLUE AND WHITE (shirt) and ROYAL BLUE OR NAVY (shorts or skirt).

1.1. Mission Statement

Western Province Badminton Association's Mission Statement is:

To Make Badminton a Bigger and Better Sport for All.

We are working towards increasing the awareness and the number of people playing and participating in the healthy hobby, and towards always improving the skills' levels of players. The W.P. Badminton Association considers all human beings of equal importance and value irrespective of race, religion or ability.

2. AFFILIATION AND MEMBERSHIP

2.1. Affiliation – Provincial

Western Province Badminton Association is a District Federation of Western Cape Badminton.

Western Cape Badminton is affiliated to Badminton South Africa, the National Governing body.

2.2. Eligibility

All Clubs or Associations playing Badminton under Badminton World Federation Rules in the Western Province shall be eligible for affiliation subject to the approval of the Executive Committee provided they are located within the area of jurisdiction of the Association as defined in the Constitution of Badminton South Africa: The Cape Peninsula and surrounding areas up to a line defined as follows: From the Swartland on the False Bay coastline, along Baden Powel Drive (R310) to Settlers Way N2, along Settlers Way to Kuils River Freeway (R300), along Kuils River Freeway to the N1, along the Eastern Boundary of Durbanville and finally a straight line from that boundary to the West Coast, immediately north of the Koeberg Nuclear Power Station.

Clubs may, however, permit membership by person's resident in the area of jurisdiction of the Cape Winelands Badminton Association, provided the Badminton Club is within the area of jurisdiction of the Western Province Badminton Association.

No Affiliated Clubs or Association may have any racial discriminatory clause in its Constitution.

2.3. Application

Any new club desirous of affiliation to the Association must satisfy the following criteria:

- Club constitution
- Names, telephone numbers and e-mail address of-
 - Chairperson
 - Secretary
 - Treasurer
- Banking Details
- Number of affiliated members & players, which should not be less than 4 male and 4 females

- Names, ID, contact numbers & addresses of all registered players

Such application should be made to the secretary of the Association in writing by 1st March of the said year

2.4. Registration

Clubs must register with the Association, all their players who will participate in the Association's Senior Leagues, Knock-out Fixtures or Senior Tournaments during the year.

Each Club shall, before the 1st June each year, forward to the Secretary of the Association a list of the names, ID numbers and addresses of such Club members. Failure to submit these lists may render defaulting Clubs liable to fines of R20.00 per week or part of a week, until lists are received.

Clubs must advise the Secretary of the Association of the Registration of any further members at least one day before he/she plays in any Senior League, Knock-out Fixture or Senior Tournament, and must confirm such Registration in writing, together with the Associate fees, within 10 days. Registrations, once indicated, may not be withdrawn.

In the event of a club not registering a player with the Association as indicated above, the club shall forfeit all matches and points in which such a player has played in favour of the opposition.

2.5. Residential Qualification

No person may play in a League or Knock-out match unless playing for a Club location within the area of Western Province for at least 21 days immediately prior to registration, except that bona fide residents who have been absent for periods of less than one year due to extended holidays or training courses, may play immediately.

2.6. Associate Membership

Other organizations promoting Badminton in the area of jurisdiction of the Association may be accorded Association Membership on payment of a nominal Fee, fixed annually by the Executive. This shall entitle them to participate in the Association's activities with the exception of league matches and tournaments. They shall be allowed to attend and speak at the general meetings of the Association without the right to vote.

2.7. Identity

W.P. Badminton Association has its own Identity and Existence distinct from its Members and Office Bearers. The association shall:

- Exist in its own right, separately from its members.

- Be able to own property and other possessions.

- Be able to sue and be sued in its own name.

- Continue to exist even when its membership changes and there are different office bearers.

3. OFFICERS

The Officers of the Association shall consist of:

- (i) A President
- (ii) Vice-Presidents
- (iii) An Executive committee of EIGHT persons constituted as follows:
 - (a) Chairperson
 - (b) Vice-Chairperson
 - (c) Treasurer

- (d) Five Additional Members, one of which shall be the Transformation and Development Officer and one of which shall be a Junior and Schools Representative.

3.1. Election of Officers

All the foregoing Officers shall be elected by general vote at the Association's Annual General Meeting to be elected by ALL Clubs. All nominees to be elected must receive at least 50% of the votes present at the Meeting.

The nominations for the positions of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson can only be considered when the new candidates have served on the Executive for a minimum of 2 years which should include the previous term.

Nominations by Clubs for Officers must be in the hands of the Secretary of the Association by the 31st August (or four weeks before the date set for the Annual General Meeting, whichever is later); but in the event of no nominations being received for the post of an Officer, the Executive shall have the right to make nominations for these posts. Once a nomination by a club is in the hands of the Secretary, that nomination may be withdrawn only by the Nominee.

The officers elected will serve in their respective positions for a period of 2 years.

3.1.1. Supplementary Officers

In addition to the Officers referred to in Paragraph 3 supra, there shall be TWO SUPPLEMENTARY Officers elected at the Association's Annual General Meeting by all persons who bound themselves as sureties to the Cape Town City Council for the Association's obligations to the City Council in regard to the Association's Headquarters (either in respect of the initial loan or subsequent loans, for amounts of R1,000.00 or more each); in order that such Supplementary Officers may protect the interests of the said sureties.

The said Supplementary Officers (who may already be Officers), shall in terms of Paragraph 3 be elected on a majority vote by those sureties present in person or by proxy at the Annual General Meeting.

The rights and powers of such elected Supplementary Officers shall be limited to voting solely on matters related directly or indirectly to the Association's financial matters incidental to Headquarters.

Immediately all sureties aforesaid and obligations to the City Council and rights as sureties against the Association terminate, their membership of the Executive as Supplementary Officers shall simultaneously cease.

The provisions of the paragraph 3.1.1. shall therefore automatically be deleted from the Constitution.

In the event of the Association being in a position to make capital repayments on the above loans, over and above the normal annual interest and redemption payments, such capital repayments must be made first against the initial loan from the City Council until that is fully repaid.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Constitution contained or any subsequent amendment thereto, the provisions of this paragraph shall not be amended or deleted (except as referred to in the last but one paragraph) unless agreed to in writing by SEVENTY FIVE percent of the said sureties.

3.2. Executive Committee Procedure

3.2.1. Voting Rights

Each member of the Executive Committee shall have a Deliberative Vote, and the Chairperson (or Deputy in his Absence) both a Deliberative and Casting Vote. Such Deputy will be the Vice-Chairperson or in his absence a person elected by those present at the meeting.

3.2.1.1

All decisions taken by the Executive shall be final and binding.

3.2.2. Quorum

A Quorum of the Executive Committee shall be the Chairperson or Vice-chairperson plus 3 (three) other executive members.

3.2.3. Vacancies

Any Executive Member failing to attend two meetings of the Committee without valid reason (of which the Executive shall be the sole judge) will automatically cease to be a member of the Executive.

The Executive shall have the power to fill any vacancies which may occur during their period of office, except that should a vacancy occur earlier than four weeks before the pre-season Special General Meeting, the Executive may fill the vacancy only on a temporary basis, and Clubs may nominate up to 14 days before, and vote at the Special General Meeting to fill the vacancy.

3.2.4. Convening of Meetings

Executive Meetings shall be held as often as the Executive deems necessary. However, the Chairperson shall have the power to convene meetings when he/she so deem it necessary, especially in times of an emergency.

3.3. Secretary and Administrator

The Executive shall appoint, at such remuneration as it deems fit, in each year, a Secretary and an Administrator (if necessary) who shall attend Meetings of the Executive Committee in a non-voting capacity. A duly elected member of the Committee may be appointed Secretary or Administrator and continue as a voting member of the Committee for the term for which he/she was elected.

A contract re the role, function and remuneration / honorarium of the secretary shall be drawn up between the Association and the appointed person. Such a mutually accepted and duly signed agreement between both parties shall be final and binding.

3.4. Powers of Executive Committee

In addition to powers specified elsewhere in this Constitution, the Executive shall have full power to carry on the work of the Association, but shall not involve the Association in respect of loans exceeding R330 in any one case except on the authority of the General Meeting of the Association.

Fixtures shall be arranged by the Executive Committee, who will decide where matches are to be played. The Executive shall have the right to delegate this role to a committee who shall be represented on the Executive.

3.5. Recording of Minutes

Minutes of all meetings must be kept safely and always be on hand for Members to consult.

3.6. Continued Existence

W.P. Badminton Association will continue to exist even when its Membership changes and there are different Office Bearers.

4. SUB-COMMITTEES

Sub-Committees shall operate in terms of the Constitutions and rules agreed by them in collaboration with the Executive.

The Coaching, Court Officials, Juniors, Lower League, Veterans, Tournaments and Development Sub-Committees shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting, following proposals as per clause 3.1 above, except that the outgoing Sub-Committees may also make nominations for their successors. The AGM agenda will show from whom such nominations were received. All these Sub-Committees shall have a Convener (Secretary and Treasurer where applicable). Such Sub-Committees shall have the power to co-opt additional members. All Sub-Committees shall submit financial statements of income and expenditure each month for ratification by the Executive.

4.1. Disciplinary Committee

4.1.1. Members

The Disciplinary Committee shall consist of three members appointed at the Annual general Meeting and three alternates.

The Disciplinary Committee shall consist of 3 (three) members. Such appointees must be members of good standing with their respective clubs. No serving Executive member shall form part of such a committee. If any of these 3 members find it impossible to fulfill their role and hence resign, the Executive shall have the power to appoint a replacement until the following Annual General Meeting.

4.1.2. Powers

The Disciplinary Committee is empowered to consider any alleged breach of the rules of the Association or misconduct of an affiliated Club, or any of its players, officials or spectators. The full Committee must be present for any such consideration.

Any complaint with regard to the breaching of the rules or misconduct be it on or off the court has to put in writing to the Committee. This complaint has to be dealt with within 7 (seven) days of receipt of such a complaint.

Both the accused and the accuser shall be informed in writing of such a meeting. Both parties shall have the right to be accompanied by the witness / representative who may not be a lawyer.

It is compulsory for all 3 (three) members of the Disciplinary Committee to be present when such a meeting is held.

The accused and the accuser shall also be informed in writing of the decision taken by the Disciplinary Committee 7 (seven) days subsequent to the day the Committee met.

4.1.3. Appeal

Any Appeal on a decision of the Disciplinary Committee shall be to the Executive. Such Appeal must be made in writing to the Secretary within 14 days of receipt of advice of the Disciplinary Committee's decision.

The Executive Committee shall meet within 7 (seven) days after the receipt of the appeal. The accuser shall be informed in writing by the Executive of such an appeal. Both parties shall be informed in writing of the decision taken by the Executive within 7 (seven) days after the Executive has met.

The highest body of appeal shall be Badminton South Africa.

Such an appeal (with written notification to the Association) has to be made with 14 (fourteen) days of receipt of the advice of the Executive's decision. The accuser shall be informed of such a further appeal.

4.2. Other Sub-Committees

The Executive Committee may appoint such further Sub-Committees (with or without power to co-opt) as it may deem necessary.

The Executive may delegate Executive Committee powers to such Sub-Committees (i.e. powers relevant to the Sub-Committee's term of reference) provided a majority of the members of the Sub-Committee are members of the Executive which shall include either the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson.

5. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

5.1. Date and Venue

The Annual General Meeting shall be held in the latter half of September, or October, at a place appointed by the retiring Executive Committee. At least 14 days notice of such shall be given to Clubs.

5.2. Attendance and Voting

The following are entitled to be present and vote:

- (a) The retiring Executive members: one vote each;
- (b) Each Club, with a vote proportionate to its registered membership for the previous season, on the basis of one vote for every 15 full members or part thereof, with a maximum of 3 votes.

The Chairperson (or deputy in his absence) shall have both Deliberative and Casting Votes. Such deputy will be the Vice-Chairperson, or in his absence a person elected by the meeting.

The President, Vice-President, Life Members and any other members of affiliated clubs may be present but shall not have the right to vote, and may speak only with the Chairperson's permission, unless present also in capacity (a) or (b) above.

Other persons may attend only with the Chairperson's permission.

Motions, except under 5.3 (g) shall require a simple majority for adoption.

5.3. Procedure

The business shall be:

- (a) To read and confirm the minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting and any Special General Meetings.
- (b) To read and adopt the Chairperson's Annual Report.
- (c) To elect officers for the ensuing year (nominees must have signed indicating acceptance before circulation of the nominations).
- (d) To elect a Selection Committee for Juniors, Seniors, Lower League, Veterans, Masters, Grand Masters, Silver Eagles and Golden Eagles. (Nominees must have signed as for (c)).
- (e) To elect an auditor.
- (f) To decide on the amounts payable for fees (ref. 9.1).
- (g) To amend the Constitution or Rules Governing Competitions in terms of Article 7.
- (h) To consider Shuttle Arrangements for the forth-coming and following season.
- (i) To consider any other competent business.

5.4. Quorum

A Quorum shall consist of the delegates of 50% of affiliated Clubs.

If a Quorum is not present at a legally convened meeting of the Association, the meeting shall be adjourned for 30 minutes, after which period, at the discretion of the Chairperson, the number then present shall constitute a Quorum.

5.5. Non Attendance by Clubs

Any club which is not represented at a General Meeting shall be fined R500 for non-attendance. This is to be paid within 30 days of the meeting.

6. SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Special General Meetings shall be convened by the Executive and held when the Executive Committee deems necessary, or within 21 days of receipt by the Secretary of written request by a minimum of 25% affiliated Clubs.

It must be clearly stipulated in the written request the reason(s) why such a meeting has been requested.

At such an "emergency" meeting only the stipulated reason(s) shall be dealt with

Regulations, dates, venue, notice, attendance, voting and quorum apply as for the Annual General Meeting.

A Special General Meeting shall always be held within 3 weeks of 28th February to read and adopt the financial statements for the previous year, and to consider any other relevant business.

7. AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTION OR RULES GOVERNING COMPETITIONS

7.1. Amendment

The Constitution or Rules Governing Competitions shall not be amended (or added to) except at the Annual General Meeting or a Special General Meeting. Any motion embodying such alterations, or one having the like effect, must receive a majority vote in favour, to be adopted.

7.2. Submission of Proposals

Notice of proposed amendments to the Constitution or Rules Governing Competitions must be made in writing and be in the hand of the Secretary on or before 31st August (or four weeks before the date set for the Annual General Meeting, whichever is later) each year in respect of the Annual General Meeting, or one month before the date requested for a Special General Meeting, unless proposed by the Executive.

7.3. Notice

The Secretary shall advise each affiliated Club of any proposed amendment at least 14 days before the date of the General Meeting at which it is to be considered.

8. INTERPRETATION

In the event of doubt or dissension ensuing in regard to the meaning of any clauses in the Constitution or Rules Governing Competitions, the Executive (or Chairperson during the course of a General Meeting) shall rule. Appeal on any such ruling shall be to Badminton South Africa.

9. FINANCE

9.1. Fees

There shall be a Club Entrance Fee, Affiliation Fee and Team Subscription Fee/Fees – the amount of each to be decided at the Annual General Meeting each year.

Team Fees and Capitation Fees will be increased by a minimum of the current inflation rate each year. Such increases shall be considered and voted upon in the normal manner.

Each affiliated Club shall pay to the Association a Registration Fee, the B.S.A. Levy and any other levy as decided upon at each Annual General Meeting for each registered member. The B.S.A. Junior and Senior Levy shall apply 31st December of the previous year.

Clubs are liable for full individual Registration Fees for a total of the number of league teams they enter multiplied by six. Any further persons registered by a Club shall be charged 100% of the B.S.A. Levy and only 50% of the balance of the Registration Fees.

9.2. Payment of Fees

The fees specified in 9.1 shall be forwarded to reach the Association on or before 31st May each year (or later as relevant, say, to subsequent additional registrations) may incur a penalty of 5% per month, a part of a month to count as a month, until paid.

Should fees not be paid by 31st July, the club concerned may be suspended, matches scheduled while suspended to be forfeited to the opponents. Clubs may also be suspended if they have not paid at least 50% of their fees by 30th June.

9.3. Treasurer's Accounts

The Treasurer's Accounts and vouchers shall be examined by the Auditor or Accounting Officer as at 31st October each year, together with the accounts and vouchers of all the Sub-Committees.

The consolidated Financial Statements shall be examined and certified by the Auditor or Accounting Officer as being a true and fair statement of the affairs of the Association as at 31st October each year to be presented at the February/March Special General Meeting.

9.3.1. Cheques

For a Cheque issued by W.P. Badminton Association to be considered legal tender it must be signed by 2 (two) authorized signatories. These 2 (two) authorized signatories are to be any 2 (two) out of 4 (four) authorized signatories. These 4 (four) authorized signatories shall be selected by the W.P.B.A. Executive committee and registered at our bank.

Preferably they should be:

- (a) The Chairperson
- (b) The Treasurer
- (c) The Administrator/Secretary
- (d) Another Executive Member.

9.3.2. Bank Account

The Associations financial transactions are conducted by means of its bank account at a registered commercial bank.

9.4. Defaulting Club Members

Clubs must notify the Executive of any members who have failed to fulfill their financial obligations to their club by 30th September of each year.

No such person, nor any person B.S.A. may advise, having similarly failed to fulfill his/her financial obligation to his/her Club in any other Province shall be eligible for membership of any Club affiliated to the Association or the Association's Executive Committee or Sub-Committees.

9.5. Distribution of Money and Property

W.P. Badminton Association may not give any of its money or property to its Members or Office Bearers. The only time this can be done is when payment for work is done for the Association. This payment must be a reasonable amount for the work that has been done.

9.6. Property Rights

Office Bearers or Members have no rights over assets which belong to the Association.

10. DISSOLUTION

The Association shall not be dissolved except at a General Meeting specially convened for the purpose, where a resolution to dissolve, is supported by four-fifths of the persons present and eligible to vote. A quorum at such a Meeting shall be delegates from 75% of affiliated Clubs.

If, upon dissolution of the Association, there remain any assets whatsoever after the satisfaction of all Association's debts and liabilities, such assets shall not be paid or distributed among member Clubs. Instead the General Meeting at which dissolution is decided shall specify an existing body as Trustee, or shall elect a group of three persons to act jointly as Trustee, to administer these assets. If in the five years following dissolution an Association is formed, which to the satisfaction of the Trustee will promote and administer the game of Badminton in the Western Province, the Trustee shall hand over the assets to this Association. Should no such Association be formed in that period, the Trustee shall at the end of the five year period hand over the assets to the Association they consider best promoting and administrating the game of Badminton on a national basis.

11. LIFE MEMBERSHIP

The Executive may recommend to the Annual General Meeting the award of Life Membership to a person who has rendered outstanding service to Badminton. Nomination for this award may also be submitted by Clubs to the Executive for consideration on or before 31st August each year. The award shall be made by a majority vote of the delegates present.

The award of Life Membership will entitle the recipient to an official Western Province Blazer with the words "Life Member" or the equivalent in the language of the recipient's choice underneath the badge. The blazer and badge will be to the account of the Association.

12. REPRESENTATIVE WESTERN PROVINCE TEAMS

12.1. Selectors

A Western Province Selection Committee shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting consisting of a maximum of FIVE members and minimum of three members each year. This selection committee shall select all Western Province Senior representative teams.

These members will select the captain and manager for the team concerned.

A Junior Selection Committee shall likewise be selected each year consisting of a maximum of FIVE members and minimum of three members

12.1.1. Election of Selectors

All affiliated Clubs may make nominations for the Selection Committee, which must be in the hands of the Secretary of the Association by 31st August (or four weeks before the date set for the Annual General Meeting, whichever is later) of each year. The Secretary will advise Clubs of Nominations at least 14 days before the Meeting.

No Club shall have more than two of its members serving on the Selection Committee at any one time.

The Executive shall have the power to fill any vacancy that may occur on the Selection Committee, except that should a vacancy occur earlier than four weeks before the pre-season Special General Meeting, the Executive may fill the vacancy only on a temporary basis. The Clubs may nominate up to 14 days prior, and vote at the Special General Meeting to fill the vacancy.

The Selectors shall themselves elect a convener for each Committee.

12.2. Players Eligibility and Seedings

The Selection Committee shall choose representative or invitation teams and squads for Melville Cup for training upon directive by the Executive. Any such team or squad shall be ratified by the Executive before announcement. After ratification by the Executive the announcement of the team shall be made 14 days after the tournament that was held for such selection. In the event of the Executive not being able to meet for such ratification the chairperson plus 3 additional executive members shall have the power to fulfill this responsibility. This Selection Committee shall choose representative team(s) for the national Lower League, Veterans, Masters, Grand Masters, Silver Eagles and Golden Eagles Interprovincial Tournaments on the same basis.

The team captains do not become the 5th (or 3rd) Selection Committee member. No Executive member shall be convener / chairperson of such a selection committee, but may be part of such a selection committee.

The Selection Committee shall seed the Senior Championship events run by the Association.

The Players to be selected to represent W.P. must be members of a Badminton Club located within the area of jurisdiction of the W.P. Badminton Association as defined in the Constitution.

Players must have participated in at least 60% of league matches played to date for that season and must have participated in the relevant local tournament to be eligible for the selection to Provincial teams. However, at the discretion of the Executive Committee, in exceptional circumstances, players who do not satisfy the aforementioned criteria may be considered for selection.

12.3. Award of Western Province Colours

Western Province Colours (Blazer and Badge) shall be awarded only to members of a representative W.P. Team playing against a touring team from outside South Africa, or to a member of the W.P. Team selected for the Melville Cup Tournament. In the latter case, colours shall be considered awarded once the team commences to travel to the Tournament venue, or on commencement of the Tournament if held locally.

The W.P. Blazer shall be plain royal blue with a pocket badge depicting a Disa embroidered in full colour, with wording "W.P." and "Badminton" or the equivalent in the recipients own language choice in two lines below.

For Western Province 1st Team, Veterans, Masters, Grand Masters, Silver Eagles and Golden Eagles players, Colours shall be awarded in similar manner to members of a representative team selected for the national Veterans, Masters, Grand Masters, Silver Eagles and Golden Eagles Interprovincial Tournaments. Colours shall be as for the Provincial team except that the word "Badminton" shall be replaced by "Veterans Badminton", "Masters Badminton", "Grand Masters Badminton", "Silver Eagles Badminton", "Golden Eagles Badminton", or the equivalent in the recipients own language choice.

12.4. Managers and Captains of Western Province Teams

Managers and Captains of W.P. Teams shall be nominated by the Selectors, checked by the representative Sub-Committees and ratified by the Executive.

Managers and/or Captains of W.P. Teams shall submit a written report to the Executive Committee at the first Executive Committee Meeting after the return of the team or on completion of the local Tournament.

The Manager of the Melville Cup Team is entitled to wear a W.P. Blazer with the word "Manager" under the Badge. The Managers of the Veterans, Masters, Grand Masters, Silver Eagles and Golden Eagles teams are similarly entitled to a W.P. Blazer.

The Melville Cup Team shall be selected only from players who express availability at least one month before the selection of the team.

Disciplinary action will be taken against any player whose withdrawal subsequent to selection is not bona fide.

13. HEADQUARTERS

13.1. Headquarters Management Sub-Committee

The Headquarters will be administered by a Headquarters Management Sub-Committee appointed by the Executive, and with an Executive member as Chairperson.

14. GENERAL

14.1. Shuttles

Shuttles and shuttle arrangements for match play shall be as agreed by the Annual General Meeting each year. The Executive shall each year be responsible for introducing a proposal in this regard, but this shall not preclude other affiliated Clubs from making proposals, to reach the Secretary one month before the Meeting, and to be circulated to all Clubs at least 14 days before the Meeting.

15. ARBITRATION CLAUSE

Should any dispute arise which involves the Union, its officials, any clubs affiliated with the Union, and any officials, players or members who are subjected to the rules of this Constitution, pertaining to any matter arising from the interpretation or implementation of the Constitution, or arising from the sports governed by this Constitution, then such dispute shall be referred to the Arbitration Forum of the Western Cape Provincial Government, to be dealt with in accordance with the Rules of that Forum.

The provision of Arbitration Act of 1965 shall apply to such arbitration proceedings, save to an extent modified by the Arbitration Forum rules.

This Constitution was updated on 13TH March 2019 and replaces all previous copies thereof.

.....
Mr. Glen Stokell
Chairperson Western Province Badminton Association
13th March 2019

.....
Mrs. Hayzette Sassman
Secretary Western Province Badminton Association
13th March 2019